Village of Bluffton Council Meeting Agenda
November 24, 2025 at 7:00 PM

Opening Ceremonies
Call to Order, Mayor Johnson presiding
Pledge of Allegiance

Minutes
Approval of the minutes from the Council Meeting held on Monday, November 10, 2025.
Bills

Public Comment:

Committee Reports Boards & Commissions
Ordinance Committee: 11/12 Planning Commission: 11/03
Finance Committee 11/21 Tree Commission: 11/17

Blanchard River Watershed Partnership - update

LEGISLATION

ORDINANCE NO. 11-2025 3¢ Reading

AN ORDINANCE ACCEPTING THE REVISED FEES FOR CONNECTION TO THE VILLAGE OF
BLUFFTON, OH WATER AND SANITARY SEWER SERVICES

ORDINANCE NO. 12-2025 34 Reading

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING AND ADOPTING AN APPLICATION FOR PERMIT TO
WORK WITHIN THE ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY (ROW) FOR THE VILLAGE OF BLUFFTON,
OHIO, INCLUDING ASSOCIATED FEES

ORDINANCE NO. 13-2025 1% Reading
AN ORDINANCE ASSIGNING ZONING DISTRICT CLASSIFICATIONS TO CERTAIN
ANNEXED PROPERTIES LOCATED IN THE VILLAGE OF BLUFFTON, OHIO

RESOLUTION NO. 27-2025 1t Reading
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE TEMPORARY APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE YEAR 2026
FOR THE VILLAGE OF BLUFFTON, OHIO

Village Administration Report:
Mayor:
Safety Services Reports:
-EMS- -Fire Dept.- -Police Dept.-

Meeting Dates (meetings held at the Town Hall unless otherwise noted*)
= Council Meeting — Monday, November 24% at 7:00 pm
* Council Meeting — Monday, December 8™ at 7:00 pm

Public Comment
Adjournment — Motion and Second



Village of Bluffton — Regular meeting November 10, 2025, at 7:00 p.m.
Mayor Johnson presiding. Messrs: Cupples, Kingsley, Sehthorst, Stahl, Steiner, and Talavinia present.

Cupples motioned, seconded by Kingsley, to approve the minutes from the regular council meeting
held on October 27, 2025. Roll Call: Yes (6) Messts: Cupples, Kingsley, Sehlhorst, Stahl, Steiner, and
Talavinia. No (0), Abstain (0), motion approved.

Talavinia motioned, seconded by Steiner, to approve the bills as presented. Roll Call: Yes (6) Messrs:
Cupples, Kingsley, Sehlhorst, Stahl, Steiner, and Talavinia. No (0), Abstain (0), motion approved.

Cupples motioned, seconded by Steiner, to approve moving to Anthem for employee health insurance
for 2026. The premium increase over the 2025 Aetna premiums is 4.31%. Roll Call: Yes (6) Messrs:
Cupples, Kingsley, Sehlhorst, Stahl, Steiner, and Talavinia. No (0), Abstain (0), motion approved.

The Fiscal Officer gave the following readings:

274 Reading:

Ordinance 11-2025 — An Ordinance accepting the revised fees for connection to the Village of
Bluffton, OH water and sanitary sewer services. Steiner motioned to approve the ordinance, seconded
by Stahl. Roll Call: Yes (6) Messrs: Cupples, Kingsley, Sehlhorst, Stahl, Steiner, and Talavinia. No
(0), Abstain (0), motion approved.

Ordinance 12-2025 — An Ordinance establishing and adopting as application for permit to work within
the road right-of-way (ROW) for the Village of Bluffton, Ohio, including associated fees. Talavinia
motioned to approve the ordinance, seconded by Kingsley. Roll Call: Yes (6) Messrs: Cupples,
Kingsley, Sehlhorst, Stahl, Steiner, and Talavinia. No (0), Abstain (0), motion approved.

3™ Reading:

Resolution 23-2025 — A Resolution authorizing the Mayor to enter into a contract with the Sheriff of
Allen County, Ohio and the Commissioners of Allen County, Ohio for dispatch service for Bluffton
Police, Fire, and EMS for a term of three years and declaring an emergency. Sehthorst motioned to
suspend the rules, seconded by Cupples. Roll Call: Yes (6) Messrs: Cupples, Kingsley, Sehlhorst,
Stahl, Steiner, and Talavinia. No (0), Abstain (0), motion approved. Stahl motioned to approve the
resolution, seconded by Sehlhorst. Roll Call: Yes (6) Messrs: Cupples, Kingsley, Sehlhorst, Stahl,
Steiner, and Talavinia. No (0), Abstain (0), motion approved.

Kingsley motioned, seconded by Cupples, to declare the battery-powered fire brigade vehicle as
surplus and to advertise it for sale on GovDeals. Roll Call: Yes (6) Messrs: Cupples, Kingsley,
Sehlhorst, Stahl, Steiner, and Talavinia. No (0), Abstain (0), motion approved.

Cupples motioned to adjourn the meeting.



The following meetings/events were included on the agenda and/or scheduled during the meeting.

Ordinance Committee on Wednesday, November 12 at 5:00 p.m.
Tree Commission on Monday, November 17 at 7:00 p.m.
Finance Committee on Friday, November 21 at noon.

Council Meeting on Monday, November 24 at 7:00 p.m.

MAYOR - FISCAL OFFICER



VILLAGE OF BLUFFTON
VOUCHER REPORT 11/24/2025

VENDOR AMOUNT  DEPARTMENT DESCRIPTION

AIM MEDIA MIDWEST 111.75 Administrative ADVERTISING

ALLOWAY TESTING 2,075.00 Multiple TESTING

ALLOWAY TESTING 50.00 Multiple TESTING

AMERICAN ELECTRIC POWER 6,342.92 Multiple ELECTRICITY

AMERICAN ELECTRIC POWER 1,331.11 Multiple ELECTRICITY
AVITAHEALTH SYSTEM 350.00 Rescue TRAINING - STOCK

AWAY WITH GEESE.COM 2,619.00 Park GEESE AWAY UNITS
BABCOCK, NOAH 184.10 Rescue REIMBURSE MILEAGE - STATE CHIEF'S MTG.
BLACKBURN, JESSE 269.20 Administrative TOWN HALL MICROWAVES
BLANCHARD RIVER WATERSHED 1,500.00 Administrative 2025 ANNUAL SUPPORT
BLUFFTON CENTER FOR ENTREPRENEURS 5,000.00 Administrative 2025 ANNUAL SUPPORT
BLUFFTON CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 5,000.00 Administrative 2025 ANNUAL SUPPORT
BLUFFTON PAVING, INC. 2,280.00 Street ANNUAL PAVING
BLUFFTON PAVING, INC. 12,100.00 Park LEGACY PARK ENTRANCE PAVING
BLUFFTON PAVING, INC. 21,498.00 Street ANNUAL PAVING
BLUFFTON STONE CO. 222.12 Multiple STONE

BLUFFTON STONE CO. 234.83 Multiple STONE

CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS 40.00 Multiple CABLE

CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS 170.00 Administrative CABLE

CINTAS 86.43 Administrative UNIFORMS

CINTAS 86.43 Administrative UNIFORMS

CINTAS 86.43 Administrative UNIFORMS

CINTAS CORPORATION NO. 2 458.10 Multiple PWD FIRST AID KIT

CLIA LABORATORY PROGRAM 248.00 Rescue MEDICAL CERTIFICATE FEE
COUNTY ELECTRIC LLC 3,325.00 Land & Buildings SR 103 ENTRANCE SIGNS
ENBRIDGE GAS OHIO 809.87 Multiple NATURAL GAS

EVERETT J PRESCOTTINC 719.21 Sewer YARD HYDRANTS

GREAT LAKES BILLING ASSOCIATES, INC. 610.90 Rescue EMS BILLING SERVICE
HACKENBERG, FEIGHNER, BISHOP & WERTH, LLC 2,000.00 Administrative SOLICITOR FEES
HANCOCK-WOQOD ELECTRIC CO-OP 172,499.00 Street RE-ROUTING/UPGRADES SR103 ROUNDABOUT
HANCOCK-WQOD ELECTRIC CO-OP 172.43 Multipte ELECTRICITY
HANCOCK-WOOD ELECTRIC CO-OP 54.00 Multiple ELECTRICITY

LEXIS NEXIS RISK DATA MANAGEMENT INC. 50.00 Administrative ADDRESS SEARCHES
NATHAN JORDAN 340.51 Administrative BOOTS

NATHAN JORDAN 45.86 Water WATER LICENSE RENEWAL
OHIO PEACE OFFICER TRAINING 500.00 Police TRAINING - ACKERMAN
OHIO UTILITIES PROTECTION SERVICE 4,00 Administrative MANUAL CALLOUTS
PENNCARE 30 17.66 Rescue MEDICAL SUPPLIES

PERRY CORPORATION 3,670.31 Administrative IT CONTRACT

PERRY CORPORATION 154.36 Administrative IT CONTRACT

PHILLIPS, SCOTT 130.08 Administrative BOOTS

PROMO HITS 150.00 Multiple RECEIPT FORMS

RUMPKE 27,675.78 Refuse TRASH SERVICES

SAM'S CLUB 119.84 Multiple SUPPLIES

SHELL FLEET PLUS 1,066.94 Multiple FUEL

SMARTBILL 1,305.43 Multiple BILLING SERVICES
STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE 3.38 Multipte SUPPLIES

STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE 775.08 Multiple SUPPLIES

TERRY MULLENHOUR 306.84 Administrative BLAZE EXPENSES

THE LAWFT 463.99 Police UNIFORMS



TOWN & COUNTRY FLOWERS
TREASURER, STATE OF OHIO
VERIZON WIRELESS

VILLAGE OF OTTAWA
WESSLER ENGINEERING
ZOLL DATA SYSTEMS
INCOME TAX REFUNDS

OCTOBER FIRE & EMS
MEDICARE

OPERS

FICA

BIWEEKLY PAYROLL 11/14/25
MEDICARE

OPERS

OP&F

Council Signature :

68.00
2,889.60
200.16
56,563.78
167.50
171.08
153.00

339,527.01

6,397.08
92.76
616.38
117.14

84,616.44
1,171.30
7,796.85
5,640.28

Administrative
Water
Multiple
Water

Sewer

Rescue
Administrative

FLOWERS - R. JOHNSON
LICENSE TO OPERATE - WATER
CELL PHONES

WATER

SANITARY ON-CALL SERVICES
EMS CHARTS

INCOME TAX REFUNDS

Date:




Ordinance Committee Minutes
Village of Bluffton
November 12, 2025, 5:00 PM

Present: Joe Sehlhorst, Mitch Kingsley
Staff: Jesse Blackburn

Public; Ben Hill

TOPIC: Accessory Dwelling Units (ADU): owner-occupied; conditional use

*We agreed on the principal of requiring owner occupancy of properties in an R-1 district on
which the owner seeks to place a detached ADU; current thinking is that subsequent owners
would be required to occupy such property as long as the ADU use is continued. This
requirement will be put in place by recording a restrictive covenant on the plot in the county
deed records, meaning the requirement will run with the land. Thereafter, a buyer of a plot with
an ADU present would be on notice that use of the ADU requires that new owner to live in one
of the structures on the plot or discontinue use of the ADU.

*The next discussion involved whether placing an ADU on a plot in an R-1 district would fall in

the conditional use category. The current zoning rule allows conditional uses after a public

hearing before the Village Zoning and Building Board of Appeals (VZBBA). Our dialogue
focused on the criteria to be applied by the VZBBA in granting conditional use.

-Among many other statements, in the section about powers of the VZBBA, there is this:
“§153.433 (E) Presumptions. The presumption is that any property owner should be
permitted the fullest enjoyment of his or her property and to make any improvements
thereon which do not additionally adversely affect neighbors or the neighborhood, or the
public interest.”

How should the VZBBA apply this presumption? Is there a certain number of the public

chanting ‘not in my backyard’ that will tip the balance and make the decision? That number is?

*We are at a point in time where the reading of a new ordinance will overlap with a largely re-

constituted council. Therefore, we are offering our work to this date for future consideration.

Submitted,

Joe Sehlhorst Mitchell Kingsley



Village of Bluffton
Finance Committee Meeting
November 21, 2025 @ 12:00 PM

Committee members present, David Steiner, and Phil Talavinia
Staff present, Jesse Blackburn, Village Administrator, Kevin Nickel, Fiscal Officer, EMS Chief Noah
Babcock, Police Chief Burkholder and Police Lt Oglesbee.

The 2026 Temporary Appropriations were presented by Kevin Nichol, Fiscal Officer. In discussion it
was pointed out that the temporary appropriations are calculated based on currently available balances
and information and will be effective for the first three months of 2026. After the books are closed
December 31, 2025, a more in-depth study can be made for the final 2026 appropriations and adjusted
accordingly.

After reviewing the details, the committee recommends that the Temporary Appropriations for the first
quarter of 2026 be presented to Village Council at the next meeting November 24, 2025, for approval.

The meeting adjourned at 12:52 PM.

David Steiner Phil Talavinia



Planning Commission Minutes: 11/03/25

Attendance:

Planning Commission: Rich Johnson, Mitch Kingsley, Tim Essinger, Roger Edwards, Mitch Agner
Village Staff: Jesse Blackburn, Bryan Lloyd

Village Council: Joe Sehlhorst

Community Members: Daryl Thompson, Gabe Thompson, Harold King, Charlene King, Michelle Yeagle,
Dan Garrett, Linda Garrett, Eric Rapp

Topic #1: Pre-Application Conference - Swiss County Estates - Phase |l

Daryl and Gabe Thompson from All Terra Inc., Rawson, OH submitted preliminary layout plans for the
development of Swiss Country Estates — Phase |l. The plans show 35 individual lots.

Discussion Topics included:

1. Challenges of the development were explained as underground pipeline easements exist through
the development site that place restrictions/requirements on setbacks, road construction and
layout

2. Detention pond for stormwater management is present

3. Developers requested Planning Commission consideration be given to:

a. allow variance from required setbacks (rear & front yard) on certain lots
b. creation of a condominium association within the proposed cul-de-sac portion of the
development

4. The use of the Planned Unit Development (PUD) zoning district was discussed for this
development

5. The Planning Commission was supportive of this project and ideas mentioned above for the
continued development of this property.

6. General consensus from the Planning Commission was for the Zoning Department to continue to
work with All Terra Inc. and their design engineer to further this project.

Topic #2 - Zoning District Assignment - Hancock Co./Orange Twp.

This topic has been presented and briefly discussed in earlier meetings. Further discussion ensued
about existing zoning districts and the purpose of each district in the effort to optimize the development
of each parcel while staying cohesive with the existing land use.

Roger Edwards motioned, seconded by Mitch Kingsley, to recommend to Village Council the assignment
of Zoning Districts as listed and shown on the following page to the 5 associated parcels. Roll Call: Yes
(4) Messrs: Agner, Edwards, Essinger, Kingsley



Parcel No. Street Address New Zoning District
650001029591 Not Assigned C-II Commercial District

650001029590 894 S.R. 103 Bluffton, OH C-II Commercial District
650000090210 Not Assigned I-1I Industrial District

650001012798 1215 SR. 103 Bluffton, OH  R-I Residential District

N B W N =

650001014860 Not Assigned C-II Commercial District

39000101 1588

50000050210,

NAVAO DR

C-lIl COMMERCIAL DISTRICT -- § 153.160 PURPOSE.

The purpose of the C-1l Commercial District is to provide for those retail businesses and services which
require a location other than in the central business district being either highway oriented, requiring
larger tracts of land not normally available in the central business district, or to provide local
neighborhood retail shopping facilities to those residential areas immediately adjacent.

I-1l GENERAL INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT -- § 153.200 PURPOSE.

The purpose of the I-Il General Industrial District is to encourage the development of manufacturing
facilities of a moderate and heavy nature which are clean, quiet and free of hazardous or objectionable
elements such as noise, odor, smoke or glare.

R-1 RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT - § 153.080 PURPOSE.

The purpose of the R-I Residential District to provide an area for low density residential and associated
land uses. In an R-I Residential District, no building or premises shall be used and no building shall be
erected which is arranged, intended or designed to be used for other than one or more of the following
specified uses.



September 27, 2025

Enbridge and Western Reserve Land Conservancy
3850 Chagrin River Road
Moreland Hills, OH 4402

Dear Grant Committee,

On behalf of Bluffton Village Council, | am proud to express strong support for the Bluffton
University and Blanchard River Watershed Partnership Prairie Restoration Project. This
initiative represents an exciting opportunity to turn an area currently vulnerable to flooding
into a vibrant native prairie that will manage stormwater naturally, lower maintenance
costs, and strengthen the ecological resilience of our community.

Our village understands the importance of responsible land stewardship. Converting turf
grass and flood-prone open space into native prairie will improve water infiltration, reduce
runoff, and minimize erosion—helping to safeguard public infrastructure and nearby
properties from flood impacts. Equally valuable, the project will expand habitat for
pollinators and other wildlife, enriching local biodiversity and contributing to a healthier
environment for residents.

We are particularly encouraged by the project’s emphasis on education and community
involvement. Bluffton University and BRWP plan to engage students and residents through
outreach materials, interpretive signage, social media, and public presentations. These
efforts will help raise awareness about the value of prairie ecosystems and encourage
other communities throughout Allen County and the Blanchard River Watershed to adopt
similar conservation practices.

Thank you for considering this request. We believe the Prairie Restoration Project is an
excellent fit for the mission of Enbridge and Western Reserve Land Conservancy to
conserve and restore land for the benefit of people and nature.

Sincerely, :" . -

Josep W. Sehlhorst
Village of Bluffton Councilman




Enbridge Watershed Grant

11/14/2025

Bluffton’s natural restoration projects have continued to encourage collaboration between
the campus and the surrounding community, inviting students, faculty, staff and local
residents to engage directly with the outdoors.

Bluffton University awarded natural preservation grant

Bluffton University, in partnership with the Blanchard River Watershed Partnership (BRWP),
has received an Enbridge Watershed Grant from the Western Reserve Land Conservancy to
establish a one-acre native prairie along Little Riley Creek beside the Sommer Center. The
nearly $2,500 grant will support the planting of native grasses and wildflowers, which will
not only improve water quality and reduce runoff but also enhance habitat diversity,
creating a vibrant, living classroom right on campus.

“Compared to the turf grass currently in place, this prairie will better absorb flood water
and stream nutrients, provide habitat for wildlife, reduce mowing costs, and create a
beautiful natural area for both recreational and educational use,” explained Dr. Jacob
Buchanan, assistant professor of environmental science and M’Della Moon Endowed Chair




in Botany and Environmental Science. “In turn, this will help increase the sustainability of
our campus.”

The grant also opens the door for hands-on volunteer opportunities in the restoration
process. Bluffton’s natural restoration projects have continued to encourage collaboration
between the campus and the surrounding community, inviting students, faculty, staff and
local residents to engage directly with the outdoors.

“Once the site is prepared, everyone will be invited to come take part in the restoration
process,” Buchanan added. “You will be able to volunteer to help broadcast the native
seeds by hand. With these funds, we will continue our efforts in conserving and restoring
Bluffton's natural areas for all to enjoy.

Dr. Gayle Trollinger, interim vice president of academic affairs and dean, shared, “This
project exemplifies Bluffton’s commitment to sustainability, environmental stewardship,
and community engagement. We are thrilled to see how this space will grow into a vibrant
prairie that not only enhances the campus landscape but also serves as a hands-on
educational resource and a beacon of ecological renewal for our region.”

Work on the prairie installation is expected to begin in 2026, marking an exciting chapter in
Bluffton University’s ongoing efforts to foster sustainable practices, protect natural
habitats, and inspire generations of environmental stewards.




ORDINANCE NO. 11-2025

AN ORDINANCE ACCEPTING THE REVISED FEES FOR CONNECTION TO THE
VILLAGE OF BLUFFTON, OH WATER AND SANITARY SEWER SERVICES

WHEREAS, the Village of Bluffton provides public water and sanitary sewer utility services
to residential, commercial, and industrial users within and, where capacity permits, beyond
the corporate limits of the Village; and

WHEREAS, the Village Administration and Utilities Committee have reviewed the current
connection fee schedule and recommended adjustments to reflect the true and current cost of:
system capacity, infrastructure extensions, equipment & labor rates and inspection services;
and

WHEREAS, the Bluffton Village Council has determined that adoption of revised connection
fees is necessary to maintain the fiscal integrity of the utility systems, ensure equitable
participation by all new users in system development costs, and continue to provide reliable
public utility services.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the Village of Bluffton,
Ohio, that:

SECTION 1. Adoption of Revised Connection Fees.

The schedule of fees for connection to the Village’s water and sanitary sewer systems, as
recommended by Village Administration and approved by the Village Utilities Committee, is
hereby accepted and adopted as the official connection fee schedule for the Village of
Bluffton.

SECTION 2. Schedule of Fees.

Effective upon passage of this ordinance, the attached Exhibit A shall serve as the connection
fees to public water and sanitary sewer services provided by the Village Bluffion, OH to take
effect on January 1, 2026.

SECTION 3. Repeal of Inconsistent Provisions.
Any prior ordinances or resolutions establishing conflicting or superseded connection fees for
water or sanitary sewer services are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict.

SECTION 4. Implementation.

The Village Administrator and Fiscal Officer are hereby authorized and directed to
incorporate the revised connection fees into the Village’s official Fee Schedule and to make
such fees available to the public through permitting documents.



SECTION 5.

That it is found and determined that all formal actions of the Council concerning and relating
to the adoption of this Resolution were adopted in an open meeting of this Council and that all
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in such formal action
were in open meetings open to the public and in compliance with all legal requirements
including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.

Passed and adopted the day of , 2025, by the governing board of the
Village of Bluffton:
Ayes: Noes: Abstain:
Attest ]
Fiscal Officer Mayor

Approved as to form:

Village Solicitor



T 28ed

|euoilppe aJe $334 UOHIBUUO

3 pue uonels yn

BUOIIPPE 348 51502 dydads aus |
QdL agl agl agL 00S'ST S O00E0T S 00S'S S 009 $ dejuamas pueualep eiol
0S€v S|0SZ'C $|00ZT $ 0S8 S 934 de} 1amas
aaL adl ass agl QgL adl aqL aal $934 U0|30BUUO) ,
00SS 99j uoljels Y
0ST $ | 0ST S| 0ST S | 0sT S| ost $ | 0ST $ | 0ST S | 0ST S suiddew pue uonadsuy
[12Un0) 38e|)IA yum palerjosau s34 00Z'v S|001'T $|0SOT S |00 S 934 Ayoede)

8 W9 Wb € ul WZ/T1-1 uT /€

{9215 321MUBS J91em wouy paseq) $23J QS 1amas

00S‘T  $|00ST S| 00S‘T S| 00stT $/000T S$|000T $|000T $[000T $| Jiedas pueind adepns pijos
QgL aglL adal agal asl asl asai ast (8uiog "a'1) s33.1eYyd |,ppy
agi aaL aaL adl 0STTT $)0s08 s|oosy s|osse ¢ 294 dej satem| .m_.
0ST S | 0ST $ | 0stT S| oSt S | ost S| ost S | oSt S | 0ST S dujwesdoud 13 uonaadsu)
J030R1U0) pancidde Ag suonesiydads adefia 000T S$|{000T $|000T S$|000T & Jogeq g 1wawdinb3
031 p3jjeasul 51500 ||e 40y B|qisuosdal Jaumo Autadosd | 008's  S|oosy sfoot'z  S|oo6T ¢ [etia1e N
[10Uno) d3e|)IA Yim paieodau 9a4 00Zv $|00TC S|0SOT S |00 S 934 Aypede)

.8 .9/ ub| W€ R4 T/ T-T oI W/€

33) dey 19180
u8
(1Puno) ade|jip e
Yim uonleijodau Aq paysi|qeisa aa4 W
u€
00Ty S (00748 2N ul
(0[] AF A 00Tz $ WZ/T-T
< H_Q_r_xm 0S0'T S 0s0'T S Wl
00, S 00L S ub/€
13Mas 131B M0 9ZIS dV1
994 Adede)




¢ 93ed - ¥ uqiyx3

11010e43u02 p3A0IAdE a3e|jiA AQ PaLWI0LIAA 3 |)IM Y10M SIY ] “Bulj Aviedoid 3y 0} |2491E| B PUIXS pue de} a2IAL13S 9Y) 918D
0] 1500 919|dW02 9y} 40§ 3]qIsUOdsL 3] [[IMm 12UMO Aliadoid ay) “‘Ajiadoid ayl 03 P2puaixs uaay Jou sey |etalej JIAIDS e |
8ulU0Z/W0I 0IYO-UOSNIQ' MMM 'SUOL}EDIIAdS 10} SUOIIRINSDY 19Mas bm«_cmm 176 J91dey) - saoueulplQ Jo
9P0) UOHN|Y 93 "ABM JO 131 9y] 01 BUIP|ING Sy} WOy [eJ31e) Jomas BullIauuod pue SUIA[AANS 104 a|qISUCASal S| JaUMO Apadold

dn-yooy Jayaw Suipnjoui
Aem Jo 1ydil puoAaq

‘dumas
¥10M |je 10} 3|qIsuosdal UB J515UU 1518M SUA 10
NXW /INOTS SIJ9umo Apadoid ‘olpey P } ' 134
SNSUaS UM 1a18W 7D ININO Ue 3 1Snw 4313w J31e M uoliejjeisul pue aseyaund
pue aalaw Ajddns 0}
‘suoiiediynads adej|ia 03 Suipiodae 3IAIBS YsI|gelss 0]

ay3 3uipnpul Aem jo
1Y3u ay1 0 |esanew pue
Joqe| |je Ajddns 03 a3e|jiA

ase||IA ‘Aem Jo 1ySu 8
[elialew pue foge| ||e 10y} 3|qisuodsal s Jaumo Apadouay IPA e
1€ XOQ 9A|BA PUE 3A|BA JJO
INYS e YIMm auy| 20135
pue del AjJddns o3 a8ejjiA

L . L4
:m =o _..v :m -—N :m..H -_.ﬁ :q\m




ORDINANCE NO. 12-2025

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING AND ADOPTING AN APPLICATION FOR
PERMIT TO WORK WITHIN THE ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY (ROW) FOR THE
VILLAGE OF BLUFFTON, OHIO, INCLUDING ASSOCIATED FEES

WHEREAS, the Village of Bluffton owns and maintains public roadways, streets, alleys,
and related right-of-way (ROW) infrastructure for the use and benefit of the public; and

WHEREAS, excavation, construction, installation, maintenance, or other work activities
within the public right-of-way can affect the integrity, safety, and long-term condition of
Village streets, utilities, and drainage systems; and

WHEREAS, the Village Council finds it necessary to establish a formal permit process
for any private individual, contractor, public utility, or other entity proposing to perform
work within the public ROW to ensure such work is conducted in a manner that protects
public infrastructure and public safety; and

WHEREAS, the adoption of a permit application and fee schedule will allow the Village
to recover reasonable administrative, inspection, and restoration-related costs associated
with regulating and overseeing right-of-way activities.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the Village of Bluffton,
Ohio, that:

SECTION 1. Adoption of Application Form.

The Village of Bluffton hereby adopts the document titled “Application for Permit to
Work Within the Road Right-of-Way (ROW),” attached hereto and incorporated herein
by reference as Exhibit A. The permit application shall be required for all work within
Village-owned or maintained roadways, alleys, or right-of-way, except for routine
Village maintenance.

SECTION 2. Administration and Approval.

The Village Administrator or their designee shall review and approve or deny all ROW
permit applications. Work may not commence until a permit is issued and all fees have
been paid. All applicants shall submit a completed permit form, site plan, and proof of
liability insurance or bond as required. The Administrator may require a pre-construction
meeting, temporary traffic control plan, or restoration deposit depending on project
scope.

SECTION 3. Permit Fees.
As shown in Exhibit A. Permit fees may be adjusted by resolution or future amendment to
the Fee Schedule.



SECTION 4. Compliance and Enforcement.

Any person or entity performing work within the Village ROW without a valid permit
shall be in violation of this ordinance and subject to enforcement actions, including stop-
work orders, restoration at the applicant’s expense, and penalties as established in the

Village Code of Ordinances.

SECTION 5. Repeal of Inconsistent Provisions.
All prior ordinances, resolutions, or policies inconsistent with this ordinance are hereby
repealed to the extent of such conflict.

SECTION 6. Implementation.

The Village Administrator and Fiscal Officer are hereby authorized and directed to
incorporate the new permit application and fee schedule into the Village’s official Fee
Schedule, publish and distribute the permit form through the Village’s website and
administrative offices, and enforce this ordinance through inspection and permitting
procedures.

SECTION 7. Effective Date.
This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest period allowed
by law.

SECTION 8.

That it is found and determined that all formal actions of the Council concerning and
relating to the adoption of this Resolution were adopted in an open meeting of this
Council and that all deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted
in such formal action were in open meetings open to the public and in compliance with
all legal requirements including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.

Passed and adopted the day of , 2025, by the governing board of
the Village of Bluffton:
Ayes: Noes: Abstain:
Attest -
Fiscal Officer Mayor

Approved as to form:

Village Solicitor



Exhibit A

APPLICATION FOR PERMIT TO WORK WITHIN

LUFFTON ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY (ROW)

Application is hereby made by:

Company Name: o

Address:

Contact person:

Phone number:

Email: -

Project Description:

WE AGREE TO THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS UPON ISSUANCE OF THE PERMIT:

1. To restore all disturbed surfaces to their original condition and adhere to the specifications or
restrictions as outlined below.

2. To keep the disturbance to road surface and shoulder at a minimum. Trenches within the road
and shoulder areas will be backfilled with ODOT approved gravel and tamped, so that
settlement of the material is minimized. If settlement does occur withing one year of backfilling,
additional suitable material will be put into place and compacted.

3. All road crossings where said road is hard surfaced (blacktop, concrete etc.) will be made using
the bore method unless further permission is granted from The Village of Bluffton regarding
cutting the pavement. If an open cut is permitted, the road surface at the trench will be
replaced with material of the type that was removed, and the new surface will conform with the
grade of the undisturbed surface. Fees for this work are listed below.

PERMIT FEES:
Road Bore/Bore within Right-of-Way: $5.00 per linear foot with a
$500.00 minimum Fee. Total Bore distance: ft.
Road Cut: $10.00 per sq. ft. with a 1,000.00 minimum Fee.

Total Road Cut Area: sq. ft.
4. Traffic will be maintained at all times, unless permission is granted by the Village of Bluffton to
close the road. Any necessary lights, signs, barricades, and/or flagmen and watchmen will be
placed on the job for the protection of traffic at all times, day and night, during the time this




work is being done and that any instructions given by the Village of Bluffton as to handling of
traffic will be fully complied with.

5. All mailboxes, signs, yards, driveways, drainage structures, fences, ditches, sidewalks, or other
pertinent property damaged or removed during initial construction or future maintenance will
be replaced or repaired as good as or better than existing.

6. To notify all property owners within the construction area at least (5) working days before work
begins.

7. To notify the Village of Bluffton of any encountered drainage tiles. All drainage tiles encountered
will be repaired or replaced.

8. To assume the responsibility for and to save the Village of Bluffton, as signed below, harmless
from any and all claims arising from the work performed. For personal injuries and property
damages due to the direct sole negligence of the applicant, and to defend any actions arising
therefrom. *Proof of liability insurance is required.

9. M in the future, improvements or relocations are made to any of the above portions of roads, it
will be the financial responsibility of the applicant or successors to move or relocate such
installations at the request of the Village of Bluffton.

10. To notify all utilities in the right-of-way two (2) working days prior to construction by calling the
Ohio Utilities Protection services at 1-800-362-2764 for notification of members utilities. Non-
members bust be called directly.

11. To notify The Village of Bluffton at least two (5) working days before starting construction.

12. The undersigned Governing Authority will not be held liable for damage to the company’s
facilities covered by this permit unless such damage is due to the negligence of the Governing
Authority.

Engineered prints of the proposed project are required.

Total Permit Fees:

Applicant Signature Date

Printed
Title

Permission to do this work under the conditions stated in the above application is hereby granted by the
Village of Bluffton.

Approved by

Signature Date
Printed
Title




ORDINANCE NO. 13-2025

AN ORDINANCE ASSIGNING ZONING DISTRICT CLASSIFICATIONS TO
CERTAIN ANNEXED PROPERTIES LOCATED IN THE VILLAGE OF
BLUFFTON, OHIO

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ohio Revised Code Chapter 709, the Village of Bluffton, Ohio has
approved the annexation of certain territory from Orange Township, Hancock County, Ohio, into
the corporate limits of the Village of Bluffton; and

WHEREAS, the Bluffton Village Planning Commission has reviewed the annexed territory and
recommends the assignment of zoning district classifications to the parcels described herein in
accordance with the Village Zoning Code.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE VILLAGE OF
BLUFFTON, OHIO:

SECTION 1: That the following five (5) parcels of land, previously located within Orange
Township, Hancock County, Ohio, have been legally annexed into the corporate limits of the
Village of Bluffton and are now subject to the zoning regulations of the Village of Bluffton:

Parcel No. Street Address New Zoning District
650001029591 Not Assigned C-II Commercial District I
I 650001029590 894 S.R. 103 Bluffton, OH C-1I Commercial District
| 650000090210 Not Assigned I-11 Industrial District
650001012798 1215 S.R. 103 Bluffton, OH R-I Residential District
650001014860 Not Assigned C-II Commercial District

SECTION 2: The Council of the Village of Bluffton, Ohio approves that the above-described
parcels of land shall hereby be classified into the designated zoning districts as set forth in the
table above, in accordance with the zoning regulations, map, and Code of the Village of
Bluffton, Ohio.

SECTION 3: The Village Administrator is hereby authorized and directed to update the
Official Zoning Map and zoning records of the Village to reflect the zoning classifications
adopted herein.



SECTION 4: That it is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning
and relating to the adoption of this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this Council
and that all deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in such formal
actions were in meetings open to the public, in compliance with all legal requirements including
Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.

Passed and adopted this __day of 2025 by the
governing board of the Village of Bluffton, Ohio by the following vote (2/3 required):

Yes: _ No: Abstain:
Attest:
Fiscal Officer Mayor

Approved as to Form:

Village Solicitor



RESOLUTION NO. 27 -2025

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE TEMPORARY APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE
YEAR 2026 FOR THE VILLAGE OF BLUFFTON, OHIO AND DECLARING AN
EMERGENCY.

WHEREAS: Temporary Appropriations are needed for Village operations until Final
Appropriations are prepared and;

WHEREAS: an emergency exists in that the timeliness of the approval of the Temporary
Appropriations is necessary for the preservation of the health, safety and welfare of the citizens
of the Village of Bluffion, Ohio;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE VILLAGE OF
BLUFFTON, OHIO:

SECTION 1: That for the purposes of Temporary Appropriation until the Final Appropriation is
completed; the Council hereby adopts the 2026 Appropriation as if fully rewritten herein to be
effective up through March 31, 2026, or until such time as replaced by Final Appropriation
Ordinance.

SECTION 2: That an emergency exists for the reasons set forth in this resolution.

SECTION 3: That to protect the financial integrity of the Village, which is necessary for the
protection of the health, safety, and welfare of the Village and its inhabitants.

Passed this day of 2025.
Yes: No: Abstain;
Attest:

FISCAL OFFICER MAYOR

Approved as to Form:

SOLICITOR



VILLAGE OF BLUFFTON 2026 APPROPRIATIONS
Exhibit A

ACCOUNT ACCOUNT

NUMBER DESCRIPTION

GENERAL FUND:

POLICE EXPENSES
PERSONAL SERVICES
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
OPERATING

TOTAL

FIRE EXPENSES
PERSONAL SERVICES
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
OPERATING

TOTAL

STREET & LIGHTING EXPENSES

OPERATING

TOTAL

RESCUE EXPENSES
PERSONAL SERVICES
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
OPERATING

TOTAL

DISPATCHER EXPENSES
MISC. SERVICES
COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT EXPENSES
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

MOSQUITO CONTROL EXPENSES

MOSQUITO CONTROL
CULTURAL AFFAIRS EXPENSES
A1-3C-52390 MISC. SERVICES
POOL EXPENSES
PERSONAL SERVICES
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
OPERATING
TOTAL

BRUSH DUMP EXPENSES
OPERATING
TOTAL

Temporary
2026
AMOUNT

256,674.00
103,776.00

39,905.00
400,355.00

11,557.00

1,608.00
19,993.00
33,158.00

30,659.00
30,659.00

237,944.00
68,574.00
36,939.00

343,457.00

58,149.00

8,000.00

15,372.00

5,500.00

14,023.00
14,023.00

25,000.00
25,000.00



STORM SEWER EXPENSES
A1-6D-52550 STORM SEWERS

SIDEWALKS EXPENSES
A1-6G-52550 SIDEWALK PROGRAM

AIRPORT EXPENSES

A1-6X-52390 MISC SERVICES
A1-6X-52430 REPAIR & MAINTENANCE
A1-6X-52550 RUNWAY LIGHT PROJECT
TOTAL

MAYOR/ADMIN EXPENSES
PERSONAL SERVICES
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
OPERATING

TOTAL

LEGISLATIVE EXPENSE
PERSONAL SERVICES
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
OPERATING

TOTAL

MAYOR'S COURT EXPENSE
COURT COSTS

FISCAL OFFICER'S EXPENSE
PERSONAL SERVICES
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
OPERATING

TOTAL

LAND & BUILDINGS EXPENSE
PERSONAL SERVICES
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
OPERATING

TOTAL

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT EXPENSE

MISC CONTRACTUAL SERV

AUDITOR & TREASURER FEES EXPENSE
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

DELINQUENT LAND ADVERTISING EXPENSE
PUBLISHING

23,183.00
1,320.00

24,503.00

68,673.00
22,484.00
61,769.00
152,926.00

8,580.00
1,524.00

10,104.00

28,830.00
10,976.00

6,090.00
45,896.00

7,327.00
1,175.00
55,291.00
63,793.00

7,755.00

4,620.00



AUDITOR'S EXPENSE
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

INCOME TAX ADMIN. EXPENSE

PERSONAL SERVICES
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
OPERATING

TOTAL

SAFETY EXPENSE

MISC. SERVICES

OTHER EXPENSE
OPERATING
TRANSFERS
ADVANCES

TOTAL

TOTAL GENERAL FUND EXPENSES

STREET MAINTENANCE EXPENSE

PERSONAL SERVICES
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
OPERATING
TOTAL
SNOW REMOVAL EXPENSE
OPERATING SUPPLIES
REPAIR & MAINTENANCE
TOTAL

TOTAL STREET FUND EXPENSES

STATE HIGHWAY EXPENSES
OPERATING

TOTAL EXPENSE

CEMETERY EXPENSES
PERSONAL SERVICE
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
MISC. SERVICES
TOTAL EXPENSES

16,598.00

19,819.00

7,464.00
25,152.00
52,435.00

46,085.00
479,193.00
525,278.00

1,837,581.00

59,437.00
25,318.00
778,457.00
863,212.00

10,000.00

10,000.00
873,212.00

16,830.00

16,830.00

1,977.00
308.00
12,004.00
14,289.00



PARK EXPENSES
OPERATING SUPPLIES
TOTAL EXPENSES

BENROTH BRIDGE EXPENSES
B5-6G-52430 MAINTENANCE
COURT COMPUTER EXPENSES
B7-1A-52420 OPERATING SUPPLIES

DUI ENFORCEMENT EXPENSES

B8-1A-52390 TRAINING
B8-1A-52420 OPERATING SUPPLIES
TOTAL EXPENSES

PERMISSIVE LICENSE FUND

B9-6A-52550 STREET CONSTRUCTION

TOTAL EXPENSES

BLUFFTON IN BLOOM FUND
C4-1A-52390 MISC SVC

AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT
C5-51-52560 SYSTEM EXPANSION

STORM SEWER IMPROVEMENT EXPENSES

D2-6D-52390 MISC. SERVICES
D2-6D-52550 STORM SEWERS
TOTAL EXPENSES

FIRE & RESCUE IMPROVEMENT FUND
D3-1B-52520 EQUIPMENT
TOTAL EXPENSES

POOL IMPROVEMENT FUND
D4-3D-52510 POOL CAPITAL ITEMS
TOTAL EXPENSES

EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT EXPENSES

D5-1F-52520 EQUIPMENT
D5-5X-52610 PRINCIPAL
TOTAL EXPENSES

AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT EXPENSES

442,930.00
442,930.00

8,250.00

6,600.00
6,600.00

78,297.00
78,297.00

37,950.00
37,950.00

80,000.00

80,000.00



OPERATING
Total

TOWN HALL IMPROVEMENT EXPENSES
D8-7E-52510 BUILDING IMPR.

POLICE EQUIPMENT EXPENSES
D9-1A-52520 POLICE EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT

TOTAL EXPENSES

WATER EXPENSES

PERSONAL SERVICES
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
OPERATING
E1-5X-52710 TRANSFERS
TOTAL EXPENSES

SEWER FUND EXPENSES
PERSONAL SERVICES
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
OPERATING
TRANSFERS

TOTAL EXPENSES

REFUSE FUND EXPENSES
E7-5K-52390 REFUSE SERVICE
TOTAL EXPENSES

WATER/ SEWER IMPROVEMENT FUND EXPENSES
OPERATING
DEBT

TOTAL EXPENSES

POLICE CONTINUING TRAINING
F4-1A-52390 TRAINING

NATIONAL NIGHT OUT
F6-6B-52420 OPERATING SUPPLIES

SHANNON CEMETERY
F7-1A-52390 MISC SERVICES

F8-1A-52390 K9 EXPENSES

392,874.00
392,874.00

107,000.00

156,165.00

156,165.00

37,181.00
17,640.00
327,043.00

381,864.00

52,415.00
18,775.00
147,564.00
225,000.00
443,754.00

117,605.00

432,501.00
549,440.00

981,941.00

4,620.00



Village of Bluffton

Administration’s Report
To: Mayor Johnson & Council Members

11-24-25

2025 Leaf Pick-up Season:
December 11t is projected to be the last day for the leaf pick-up.

S.R. 103 Roundabout -

Hohenbrink Excavating is planning to begin construction of the storm management infrastructure
system for the roundabout that will not require extended road closures in December. Roadway
construction & detour route will begin in March of '286.

Buckeye Park - Newly

installed geese deterrent ._..y AW ay Wlth GG es e

T Geese Gone. Guaranteed.

The Science Behind Away With Geese

360 Degree Pulse of Light with 100-
Yard Reach

Did you know that geese often sleep with one or both of their eyes
open? They can shut off half of their brain to sleep while the other
half is aware of their surroundings. The Away With Geese unit emits
a pulse of light every 2-3 seconds that puts the geese on high alert

' and disrupts their ability to sleep. This permanently alters the feel of
the habitat. Because geese like to sleep in the same area that they
inhabit during the day. they will soon choose to leave and find a new
habitat that allows them to rest, leaving your property goose free.




Legacy Park - Grant Applications:
Applications have been submitted to the:

e ODNR for the Land & Water Conservation Grant Fund requesting a matching grant of $500,000.00
for the planned Phase Il construction of the Lions Club All-Inclusive playground, looped trail system
and asphalt parking and entrance areas.

e Johnny Appleseed Metropolitan Park District - Cooperative Park Improvement Grant Program
requesting $25,000.00 of grant funding for the construction of the shelter house.

OPWC Funding-

Following sheet shows the approval of Issue 2 Funded 0% interest loan dollars from the Ohio Public
Works Commission to allow the replacement of the S.R. 103 Southeast water main line. Loan
amount is 80% of the total project costs, or $460,801.

Committee/Commission Meetings: -




SOLy = SLOAMDUL TIY ~ 4T TLASN IOVHIAY
o Tig'6ls wris Ea2 Nt TS
TIG'PGE'TE 6E1U90'TS | revsazs 65ER0L'LS LI0T A4 W04 SHOLLYIQTTY
0619 Aoy 0I00Y'GIETS D0LCEEHETS 00TIB'STLS toex TS <R (RARY MOTRA Y PARYE) GACNS 38 GL S1D310¥d VO SYL0L
T o 01T'60bs DRT0¥S 000°6LT1S | 000'SL2LS I g opsnAsooy 1g qnog] suppag o Atema|  Aqpeug
34 " 000'00ss 000°005$ COFELTIS | EOHELT'IS sprawzassdag pang sakey 7 ojday pdep iseg| piRysLing jo s3EnA| SZRERY|
13 LTY'9ETS aTV'9ETS 009'0ES | SSTTHFS |  SCW'TLPS [Wumoomiday sUISIeA 12305 NISQRATT B HA0S HATNG M =) spgjosfs|  uelo]
s 000'06ES 000068 | 000'008S | 000°0638 149MRONIdY AUHINEN 19205 YINOG P MIN ‘TITAL TeILN| Aoupnd) jo oefjip | uedo]
[ 000°005$ 000'005S 0S0'L61'ES | 0SO'L6T'ES i ®ADG WO IS JO SFENA| oz |
op $66'6VTS £66'6428 Q00'1848 | 000°I8LS Dm0y Ayrend) SwEm SPITE wpiNjo ofuA  wewng)
o 000057 000'6vZS 0005015 | 000°00¢°1$ | Q00'S0S‘1S BORIORFUCOY (IR QUG Amagiagjosdus|  momEN
o 05°002§ 000'6618 000065 | 0OO'OTT'IS| 000'00Z°1$ g oS Aiaqmuy meserory) jo aBeg| Ay
o 005'6615 a0s'8s1S 0000218 | 000'0£2'1% | 000'DSE'IS suswanasdury weiskg rep, QUGS SO SBUPA| B g
[ 000'05¥$ sLo'188s | s20'lees T S o e Sl fwnogy momp| sy
34 965'8618 9658618 | 965°8615 Sarrymemy] proy Aasuc)) Aumog pap tEp| Mop LR
I 001'¥0zS 001'b0zs WZ's0sS | 002505 uoRmYIqERY UORRIS Y'Y wapQ jo sty | el
or wrzis arots ssz'slss | ssz'slss wonbial sa y Bt QoSN Jo adeiA | Fooouvy
I3 TTrOEKS TS | LITIUS ey MO 1§ WA PIRPUR(E TN SO IBARA| Ao0omK
sz 005661 005’6618 000'66€3 |  000'66E5 uopaunsuoavy 7T PROY P9 57 paoy Amop uvmng jo dnsumoy, Luog|  amwnng
1 0000018 000'SELS | 000°SElS smoRoidt] weng o osdirjoaBeial Wl
6z 000'05€S Q000515 000°0055 | 0000058 (298 1995 BORORNFIOINY ALY PRIRIHLH] spwyJoTuy  amnng
3 LSS L05°F6S LOS'$ES Bitavg MU asssutond| Ao o ey | woang)
[i4 ) OOTOTES BeSLIS | LsTRLIS WoussoRdoy Tusag AmiEES Py SN OF 15 UoSKRD)| BUPISIOAD| Aoy
s ‘0SS wo'0ss | 000'0sE S0 19045 dianiiog| UOWRE 0 IBTYA|  wietang
w 7382 eS| oowesis Sl BORS S 15 Aoy Mop jo sdejin | evEpiny|
6l 0000515 EEC'OPTS | €ET'OSIS Rupaganssy 15318 4707 soudppa)e )| Ry
st ST9'IEIS rsars | 000'sor§ Harang 91 43 Aunagy weang| o)
® 18209 200'358 | 00°9iSS Muae0niday dee'y weiy 13444 MRS €01 M| oysag o SFags | Y
o 9689215 | €£0°T0rS | EIEONS COREIRIGUIR e AAnes S35y §EQ PIEN sy jo aleyien | Aupoyg)
62 200'002% 0600528 Tee'szuis | zEeTies B B 023 osyang jo aBPA|  Aqpig|
4 i 2000015 | 000'001S w3k SBelkusg o) SBuag pog jo eqpa|  umng
Sk LE4'6ESS WO'ELZ1E | 0G0'ELZ'LS 9207 Bnnssgameay 12858 ol s e Gl uayy]
sz 00O'FEYS 6625015 | esctseis IROREPLIGY JLIAY T3NSI HEIRD 1AEY Arjpung jo )| ety
i@ 000’298 0000615 LEEIES | acars SdLaord| 12amg pug| suuy joolnua|  agpyg)
(id HE'ISTLS QL1698 | osttiosls % = (i PRl Ao ualy|  uay|
st 0N'005T 00070058 | 000'005S Ferongmany] dgsams ] s 0y Ly Ep Aaod B e | LA UTA
81 L 00'eZIS | o0o'azis GEIRNIR] PR DIpin ) mopuEg jo dRagjtn | wewny
¥ Lel'80C8 064'092S | 0670978 E e R TR o i joo8anal  iqresl
s 092815 0Is'269'TS | ozse69s | 307 Butomyumsuy desaadons yaesuary Ano ) y0oush| 1y
st T olt'zees | oilTigs 9910-FLIGLHON 1D Ludquary 146 posy $3ig Ao uay|  unyi
¥ osTELTS for9ceis| eozeis FURUOL Pooy; ST Gl 17 wrERg 9207 A0y wmng 16 diyseno) PN wieung
o e (rIB) Q0001'IS | ORE'IS | o acaizassi asis 3<.:ﬁ?8.esm..u@h i) Wy
st ®0'ss1S THo'toss | Zioress Buragszy sifij} pooayes Aas ey g2 duy, sabmogong| aeeiny
w STF IS SOLCSTTS | S047552T8 werBazg Surepamsg diyscsog DA 907 sdtisenn] snouey g Sy ogeeryl ey
i s = 000058 QOO IS| DOnBeTTS wouadeyay sunlisyy, 1ang Adng) s g0 e s
£ O5LEGT 191'895TS | £91'655°ES sy Supapinsay diyswnn s, druns] vEsg| smdny
sl 000'001 000'001S |  090'00HS 1998 3 dagy cmuany, Dy GEaT LS UDR Aoy Uepg 1 | L2 e
s€ 609588 00005 (S 6O'PLLS | sug'wszs DRI SATH PR BT 1534 fiaac) jo Saa | armam g
asmnban | zan SUYI10d 4L NYOT NYGT W LIy ANV 1502 HOLLINE)S3¢ 1DI0Ud NoswALaang pE
YR INATISH UIMIN DNATOATE — ONIGNOS 4108 T AITVHIUAA aNT “LSNOJ Joareud i e




